
  PRESCOTT PRESERVATION                                        
COMMISSION                 

                                A G E N D A 

Prescott Preservation Commission                                                                                                                                   Page 1 of 1 
Agenda Sep 11, 2020  

 
 

PRESCOTT PRESERVATION COMMISSION                    Virtual Zoom Meeting 
REGULAR MEETING/PUBLIC HEARING                    201 S. CORTEZ STREET 
FRIDAY, September 11, 2020                    PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
8:00 AM                    (928) 777-1100 
  
     
The following agenda will be considered by the Prescott Preservation Commission at its public 
hearing to be held at 8:00 AM on September 11, 2020 via Zoom Virtual Meeting. Notice of this 
meeting is given pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 38-431.02. 
 
The Community Development Department of Prescott AZ is inviting you to a scheduled 
Zoom meeting. 
 
Topic: Historic Preservation Commission  
Time: Sep 11, 2020 08:00 AM Arizona 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
 

 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86000147639 
 
Dial by your location    
1 669 900 6833 or 
1 346 248 7799 
 
Meeting ID: 860 0014 7639 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Housekeeping – Please keep your phone or PC microphone on 
mute unless you are speaking to minimize background noise. 

 
Please identify yourself each time you speak so that we can record your 
comments in the minutes and properly count motions and votes. 

 
 
  II.       ATTENDANCE 

Members 
   
Robert Burford, Chairman 
Michael Mirco, Vice-Chairman 

Mike King 
James McCarver 

Richard Sprain Rob Johnson 
Mary Ann Suttles  

  
III. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
 

1. Approval of the minutes from the August 14, 2020 meeting. 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86000147639


                                                                                           
2. HP20-009 310 S Mount Vernon Ave.  APN: 110-03-006. Historic Preservation District 

#13, Southeast Prescott.  Request for rear roof deck with access door and stairs. 
 

3. HP20-010 112 W Gurley St.  APN: 113-15-114. Historic Preservation District #1, 
Courthouse Plaza.  Request for sign replacement for Pralines of Prescott. 
 
 

IV. UPDATE OF CURRENT EVENTS 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
THE CITY OF PRESCOTT ENDEAVORS TO MAKE ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH 
DISABILITIES. With 72 hours advanced notice, special assistance can be provided for sight and/or hearing-
impaired persons at this meeting. Reasonable accommodations will be made upon request for persons with 
disabilities or non-English speaking residents. Please call the City Clerk (928) 777-1272 to request an 
accommodation to participate in this public meeting. Prescott TDD number is (928) 445-6811. Additionally, free 
public relay service is available from Arizona Relay Service at 1-800-367-8939 and more information at 
www.azrelay.org 

 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE 
  
The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Prescott City Hall on 
9/8/2020 at 5:00 p.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the Prescott City Council with the City Clerk. 

 
   _____________________________________ 
Sarah Siep, City Clerk 

Sarah M. Siep 

http://www.azrelay.org/


  PRESCOTT PRESERVATION                                        
COMMISSION                 

                                MINUTES 

1 
 

 
 
PRESCOTT PRESERVATION COMMISSION                    Virtual Zoom Meeting 
REGULAR MEETING/PUBLIC HEARING                    201 S. CORTEZ STREET 
FRIDAY, August 14th, 2020                    PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
8:00 AM                    (928) 777-1100 
  
     
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II.       ATTENDANCE 

 
Members 
Robert Burford, Chairman  
Michael Mirco, Vice-Chairman                                                                                                                                 
James McCarver  

 

Richard Sprain  
Mike King 
Rob Johnson 

 

 
Staff:    
Cat Moody- Historic Preservation Specialist  
George Worley- Planning Manager  
Bryn Stotler- Community Development Director 
Kaylee Nunez- Recording Secretary 
 
Council:     
Phil Goode, Liaison 
Cathey Rusing 
 

 
 

III. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

The meeting was called to order at 08:04am by Chair Burford. 
 

1. Approval of the minutes from the June 12, 2020 meeting. 
 

Commissioner Suttles made a motion to approve the minutes of June 12, 2020. 
Commissioner Sprain seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 

2. HP20-006 249 S Mount Vernon Ave.  APN: 110-01-081. Historic Preservation District #13, 
Southeast Prescott.  Request for side porch enclosure and new screened-in deck in rear.  

 
Commissioner Johnson recused himself from this item prior to discussion as it is his own 
property. Historic Preservation Specialist Cat Moody presented a site plan, floor plan and 
construction details of the proposed project. The existing roof and posts of the south side 
porch will remain; the applicant will enclose the area with walls and double hung windows to 
match the remainder of the residence. There will be French doors on the east and west 
sides of the enclosed porch. A new 13’ x 18’ deck will be constructed on the east side (rear) 

 



                                                                                           

2 
 

of the residence, which will be screened in and will have an exterior set of stairs to grade 
level.  
 
Commissioner Mirco asked about the size of the screens on the south side deck, more 
specifically, how they would be supported. Applicant Rob Johnson clarified that the screen 
material is a steel mesh and is fairly rigid in nature. Chair Burford asked for details about the 
new garage, whether there was alternate access to the structure besides Mt. Vernon. Mr. 
Johnson answered that there was no access from the rear of the property and that the 
garage has to be accessed from the driveway off of Mt. Vernon. Mr. Burford also inquired 
about the current lot coverage, whether it was close to being maxed out. Mr. Johnson 
answered that he had space left but does not intend to build any more. Commissioner 
Sprain questioned whether these proposed projects would jeopardize the residence’s ability 
to be on the National Register. Ms. Moody said that the projects are differentiated yet 
compatible so it is likely to be acceptable for the Register. 

 
 Commissioner Suttles made a motion to approve HP20-006. Commissioner  
 King seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously (6-0). (*Commissioner    
 Johnson recused himself from discussion and voting on this item.) 

 
 

3. HP20-007 126 S Montezuma St.  APN: 109-02-012. Historic Preservation District #1, 
Courthouse Plaza.  Request for signage on awning (after-the-fact) for Grumpy Sicilian. 

 
Historic Preservation Specialist Cat Moody clarified that this is an ‘after the fact’ project 
approval. The awning was already existing and the applicant placed a canvas panel over the 
old business text with the new business text ‘Grumpy Sicilian’. The applicant also put new 
text along the valance of the awning. Commissioner Suttles mentioned that she has seen 
the sign in person and that it looked like ‘patchwork’ and was wondering if that is acceptable. 
Chair Burford commented that he could see another ‘patch’ being placed there in the future 
and that he believes that the black on black will fade together with further weathering. Mr. 
Burford also commented that it is acceptable, but perhaps not the best solution. 
 
Commissioner Sprain agreed with Chair Burford in that the patch may fade into the 
background in the future, but that it is not ideal at the moment. Commissioner McCarver 
asked whether there were any code restrictions about signs being placed over existing signs 
and if the new canvas panel has been secured in the event of high winds. Ms. Moody 
answered there are no restrictions regarding signs being placed over signs and that the 
owner would be asked to fix the new sign panel if it did come loose. Commissioner Mirco 
asked how the new panel was attached. Applicant Charlie Arnold clarified that it was glued 
down with a special adhesive, and he also spoke to other awnings on Whiskey Row, which 
at times have been painted over in the instance of a new business moving in. Mr. Arnold 
also explained that the change of business from Devil’s Pantry to Grumpy Sicilian was a 
business survival response to COVID-19. 

 
Commissioner King made a motion to approve HP20-007. Commissioner    

                  Sprain seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 

 
4. HP20-008 110 W Gurley St.  APN: 113-15-112A. Historic Preservation District #1, 

Courthouse Plaza.  Request for sign replacement for Raskin’s Jeweler 
.  



                                                                                           

3 
 

     *Historic Preservation Specialist Cat Moody stated that this item has been removed at   
       the applicant’s request* 

 
 

 
IV. UPDATE OF CURRENT EVENTS OR OTHER ITEMS OF NOTE 
  
 None 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Meeting Adjourned at 8:44 am 

 
    

Kaylee Nunez, Recorder  Robert Burford, Chair 



PRESCOTT PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Staff Report 
September 11, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM: HP20-009, Request for rear roof deck with access door and stairs. 

Planning Manager: George Worley 
it?.--? Director: Bryn Stotler 

Historic Preservation Specialist: Cat Moody~ 
Report Date: September 3, 2020 

Historic Preservation District: #13, Southeast Prescott 
APN: 110-03-006 
Location: 310 S Mount Vernon Avenue 

Zoning: SF-9 

Owner /Applicant: Cheryl Wilcher, 310 S Mount Vernon Ave, Prescott 86303 

Existing Conditions 
This property is located within the Joslin Whipple National Register Historic District, and 
is part of the Southeast Prescott HPD # 13. The main house was constructed around 
1924 and is listed as representing a Vernacular Style (primarily due to the combination 
of both Victorian and Bungalow elements). It is listed in the National Register of Historic 
Places. 

There is currently a roof over an existing covered deck in the rear of the home. The roof 
of this element can be accessed via a bank of 3 casement windows located in the rear 
wall of the house on the 2nd story. 

Request 
Applicants propose to: 

• Construct a 2nd story roof deck over the existing ground floor rear covered deck 
• Remove the bank of 3 casement windows and replace with a full light French 

door to access the new roof deck 
• Install a railing with horizontal rails (versus vertical pickets) around the new roof 

deck 
• Construct an exterior 2x6 wall to the south side of the proposed door that would 

extend 8 ft out from the rear wall of the house (to the west) and be sided to 
match the house 

• Construct an exterior stair to allow connection between the new roof deck and 
the back yard 

Please see the additional attachments for more details on the proposed rear roof deck 
and associated elements. 

1 



Agenda Item: HP20-009    310 S Mount Vernon Ave 

 2 

Analysis 
The Historic Preservation Master Plan for this district specifically recommends: 

• Encourage scale consistent with existing structures and styles 
• Encourage post and column treatment and other details consistent with the 

historic style of the building  
• Use gables and hip roofs consistent with historic pattern 
• Additions to existing buildings should be to the rear of the property to maintain 

the front façade 
• Locate doors consistent with the historic pattern 
• Encourage porches consistent with the historic style 

 
 
Site Visit:  Recommended  
MOVE TO APPROVE OR APPROVE WITH MODIFICATIONS -  HP20-009,  Request 
for rear roof deck with access door and stairs. 











AGENDA ITEM: HP20-010 Request for sign replacement for Pralines of Prescott. 

Planning Manager: George Worle 
Director: Bryn Stotler 

Historic Preservation Specialist: Cat Moody 

Report Date: September 3, 2020 

Historic Preservation District: #1 Courthouse Plaza 
APN: 113-15-114 Zoning: OTB 
Location: 112 West Gurley Street 
Applicant: A&B Sign Co, 691 5th St, Prescott AZ 86301 
Owner: Jds Family Limited Partnership, 3205 Lakeside Village, Prescott AZ 86301 

Existing Conditions 
This property is located between the Union Block Building and the Burmister Building 
and is listed in the National Register of Historic Places. It has been a shoe store for 
many years (Steward's and then Shoe Box), but was formerly Archambeau's Grocery 
(circa 1916) and F. W. Woolworth (circa 1925). 
There is currently a 1980s era cabinet style sign on the front of the horizontal awning, 
which is grandfathered as existing in this district. There is also a small perpendicular 
hanging sign under the horizontal awning. 

Request 
The applicant proposes to: 

• Replace the insert in the cabinet style sign on the front of the awning (no other 
changes are proposed to the cabinet other than the insert). This sign has a black 
background with "Pralines of Prescott" (logo), "The handmade CHOCOLATE 
destination" text, and "Featuring Firehouse Coffee" (logo). The sign is 36" tall 
and 144" wide. 

• Replace the inserts in the under awning sign. This sign has a black background 
with "Pralines of Prescott" (logo) and "Chocolate and Coffee" text. These signs 
are 12" tall and 48" wide. 

Please see the attached renderings for the location and depictions of the signs in place. 

Analysis 
Conformance with the Prescott Historic Preservation Master Plan (HPMP): In part, 
the HPMP chapter for the Courthouse Plaza Historic District states: 

• Use historically consistent signage 
• Use incandescent or neon lighting for signage; box, cabinet or fluorescent signs 

are not acceptable 

1 



Agenda Item: HP20-010, 112 W Gurley St 
 

 2 

This cabinet style sign is grandfathered in this district and can remain and be refaced 
via a new insert.  If the cabinet were removed it would lose its grandfathered status. 
 
Site Visit:   Recommended  
  
 
Recommended Action:  Approve or Approve with Modifications HP20-010.  Request 
for sign replacement for Pralines of Prescott. 



Photo not actual location

CHOCOLATE
& COFFEE

m

12 in

-40 In-

CHOCOLATE
& COFFEE

Manufacture & install (2) 5/16" white acrylic face with vinyl graphics.

Pv4<»a{* "PtM Stmitt S{f» S4o^
AZ. Licensed Contractor V 070010

Office 928.445.6995

Fax 928.776.4429

COMPANY: Pralines of Prescott EMAIL: babbsolutlonslic(^gmail.com

CLIENT: Plane 5abb FILE: Pralines of Prescott
www absianm mmVT Wed ^ 1 t ^ III

691 North 6th Street

Prescott, AZ 86301

Pf^ONE: 1 CELL: 702-201-5531 DATE: £>-12-20 Idate? ^"19-20
approval: rtATP. r...:..u...cr, 1

fo, tl,. f,r.t . „vtao„s. n„y customer chunges uftc, ,hot 0,0 : r,b,ect to r. S20 ort chorgo. Colors oortroyetl on proof may not mSch p^o^f^[ doo to isetlS'i^cS



nflB^HOUSE

Manufacture & Install new polycarbonate
face with graphics digitally printed on
Arlon 6500 premium translucent, gloss

UV laminate.

144"

nO,
36"

The handmade CHOCOLATE destination
COFFEE

^V4e»ei* Otii/ TuttSvu/lee Sifn Sia^
A2. Licensed Contractor # 0700K>

Office 928.445.6995

Fax 928.776.4429

www.abslgnco.com

691 North 6th Street
Prescott, AZ 86301

Tiiis artworK has bi!eii n-J ii,' ASP S -i
in any manner withoul th>- v.'nn--., u.'fnn.
for the first 2 rGvisjon-i. fsny c h'.I'j'lier ciioi

COMPANY: Pralines of Prescott
EMAIL: babbsolutionsllc^gmail.com |

CLIENT; Diane Dabb
FILE: Pralines of Prescott 1

PHONE: 1 CELL 702-201-3531 Origin
DATE:

/C -H on 1 Revise 6-f5-20 6-19-20 16-11-20 joATEfflf 1
APPROVAL;

DATE: Design by SP

v'X.:r XX XXf- not to be reproduced, copied, emailed or usedf-'hA to. T20 art charge, Colo;sporlravXan'prooXr;v'nX XatchXnXpSlSlXXXXXXeXX



flTYorPRESOOTT

^  "•Buildiug PM-mit fi; PLOT PLAN SKETCH

CITY OF PRESCOTT
COAfMUNITV DE'N'ELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

BUILDING SAFETY DmSION

Scale; 1 inch = ft.

Cifj- of Pwcott Buading Dhlsion
APPRO\'ED

Job Address; 112 W. Gurlev
Assessor's Parcel Number (5): 113-15-114

Citj- of Prescott Planning & Zoning
APPROtED

Cit}" of Prescott Eogzneering
APPRO\ED

Citj* of Prescott Fire Department
APPROVED

6 Approval ofthePlannmR & Zonme Deoartmnn ....» ^ eylanon mutt be speciaUs- pemniVd by the Enginegiue Dcpailmeiic.
City- Ordinmices and'or state bwand deed sestricrioni Die CiWit^^^DonS^ ?«>?«*>■ "tue of am-reatnciians lies soldy mth the oropgrv oimer aod/nr apphca«i «spoiwibiL-Q for said tesmctions or requirernems and the burden to comply with aicli '

N

I

Face changes

Bryan Wieweck

■112W.Gurlev
—. die oumer s agent or the owner ofrecord, for the stracnire to be located at:

wUl meet aU required setbacks, the proper^- comer pins are correct ^J ^rjJ^ do cctt.fy that the stniciurc

MtnctorOwner/CdStnictor Si^atur*

2/15/2012

8-20-20
Data

pg.5


	01.1_WILCHER_SITE_PLAN
	02.1_WILCHER_PLANS
	03.1_WILCHER_PLANS
	04.1_WILCHER_ELEVATIONS
	Analysis

